ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 7, 2012
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VMEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Eric Feige
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 311
"An Act relating to certain information filed with the Al aska
Public O fices Comm ssion; and providing for an effective date.™

- MOVED CSHB 311(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 190

"An Act relating to the allowable absence for active duty
service nenbers of the armed forces for purposes of permanent
fund dividend eligibility."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 311

SHORT TI TLE: REPORTS TO APCC
SPONSOR(s): RULES

02/ 01/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 01/ 12 (H) STA
02/ 07/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 7, 2012



BILL: HB 190

SHORT TI TLE: PFD ALLOWABLE ABSENCE

SPONSOR(s): FEI GE
03/ 11/ 11
03/ 11/ 11
03/ 31/ 11
03/31/ 11
03/31/ 11
04/ 12/ 11
04/ 12/ 11
04/ 12/ 11
01/ 20/ 12
01/ 20/ 12
01/ 20/ 12
02/ 07/ 12

IIIITITITTITIIZ

W TNESS REG STER

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
STA, FIN

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

REFERRALS

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
Rul es Standing Comm ttee,

Presented HB 311 on behalf

of the House

sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE BETH KERTTULA

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
HB 311, on behalf
sponsor.

of

Ofered

information during the hearing on

the House Rules Standing Commttee,

PAUL DAUPHI NAI' S, Executive Director
Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQC)

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

M CHAEL PASCALL, Staff

Representative Eric Feige

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT:
Represent ati ve Fei ge,
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:05:14 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

Testified during the hearing on HB 311.

Pr esent ed HB 190 on behal f of

sponsor.

February 7, 2012



CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
meeting to order at 8:05 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton
P. WIlson, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representative G uenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 311- REPORTS TO APCC

8:06: 21 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 311, "An Act relating to certain information filed with
the Alaska Public Ofices Commssion; and providing for an
effective date."

8:07: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER, Al aska State Legislature, presenting
HB 311 on behalf of the House Rules Standing Committee, sponsor,
stressed the inportance of transparency and disclosure to the
publi c. He said the legislature makes detailed and specific
statutory policies regarding who has to disclose, what has to be
di scl osed, and when and how disclosures nust be nmade, and it
charges the Alaska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APOC) to keep
track. He said HB 311 is the outcone of a reevaluation of
establ i shed policies.

8:09:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER reviewed that in 2007, the legislature
gave a policy directive to APOC that all state office filings
were to be submtted electronically. The exception nade that
still exists today is that local election candidates still have
to file disclosures, but do not have to do so electronically.
He said historically APOC offered a proprietary electronic
filing system (ELFS) and accepted Excel spreadsheets that the
comi ssion then uploaded to the its system and nade avail able to
the public. He said ELFS becane "cranky and difficult for
| egi sl ators"” and was discontinued a couple years ago. In the
interim the comm ssion has accepted filing on spreadsheet and,
t hrough the past canpaign, filing via paper.

8:11:46 AM

CHAIR LYNN clarified that which nust be reported are canpaign
expendi tures and canpai gn contributions received.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 7, 2012



8:12: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER said for the past couple years, APOC has
been working on a new proprietary online system He said he and
many others received notice on 12/29/11 - just days before the
first ferry departed for Juneau for session - that everyone
involved in the current canpaign had to retroactively adopt the
new system for reports due 2/15/12, and he inparted that many
| egi sl ators he spoke to upon arriving in Juneau indicated that
they were not even aware that the filing requirement had
changed. Representative Hawker offered his understanding that
the new system requires users to manually enter every
transaction |egislators have had over the course of the past
summer directly onto a state mainframe conputer, wthout any
record being kept on legislators' own personal conputers for
review, editing, or database managenent. He said that is a
policy call in how APOC has established the new electronic
system but it is a departure from the past when the commi ssion
allowed legislators to nmanage their own data and ensure its
accuracy before it was recorded onto a state conputer. He noted
t hat the comm ssion has subsequently cone up wth an
i nport/export feature for that system but he said he is
currently in the mddle of session and, therefore, not legally
able to engage in canpaign activity outside of reporting. He
opined that APOC s plan is too late to be instigated for the
current canpai gn cycle.

CHAIR LYNN offered his wunderstanding that during |egislative
session, legislators are allowed to make canpai gn expenditures
but not allowed to take canpai gn contributions,.

8:14:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said while greatly respecting the efforts
of APOC in coming up with a new, functional electronic system
| egi sl ators began to question whether APOCC was carrying out
|l egislative policy the way in which it was intended or was
becom ng prescriptive in its efforts. He said all the
| egi slators he spoke with think APOC is not inplenenting the
| egislature's disclosure policies in the intended nanner.
Represent ati ve Hawker enphasized the inportance of accomobdating
reasonabl e latitude by which individuals with varying degrees of
skills and experience are able to conply wth canpaign
di scl osure policy.

8:16:42 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 7, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the proposed bill would require APCC
to accept canpaign finance reports in the followng three
formats: a paper format designed by APOC, a wuser-friendly
el ectronic system which would encourage others to switch to
electronic filing; and spreadsheets or other databases, for
which APCC could set the guidelines to facilitate disclosure.
As under existing statute, APOC has 2 working days fromthe tine
it receives a paper filing to scan it and nmeke it available to
the public on Iine. Representati ve Hawker said the |anguage in
the bill [on page 2, line 7], says 10 days, and he expl ained
that is a mstake for which an anendnent is necessary.

8:19:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the proposed legislation would
accelerate the deadline for APOCC to submt a summary of
electronic reports from 30 days after an election to 30 days
after the report has been filed. The bill would further provide
a safe harbor so that those who have not conplied with the
mandate for the new system during the |ast deadline would not
have violated the | aw.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER relayed his recent canpaign disclosure
activity. In response to Chair Lynn, he confirned that the
proposed legislation is necessary to ensure that his recent
filing method is accepted by APOCC, and he explained he is
sharing this information as a possible conflict of interest.

8:22:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, in response to a question, confirmed that
under HB 311, no changes would be made regarding what nust be
reported, and the only change that would be nade regarding the
requirenents of APOC to nake the information available to the
public would be acceleration of the sunmer reporting for
electronic filing.

8:23:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BETH KERTTULA, Alaska State Legislature, on
behal f of the House Rules Standing Conmittee, sponsor, said she
supports HB 311 because she believes in transparency and because
without the bill she thinks there will be "a big problem in
ei ght days when the reports are due. She remarked that APOC has
a thankl ess job. She opined that it was the |egislature that
caused the current problem when, five years ago, it decided it
wanted electronic filing. However, after consideration and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 7, 2012



i nformal pol |'i ng, she said she is convinced that many
| egislators are not yet in a position to be able to use the new
system properly. She said at this point in tine, she would
choose to still allow paper filing, which would put the burden
on APOC to accept that formof filing and get it transferred to
a form accessible via conputer.

8: 25: 44 AM

CHAIR LYNN of fered an exanple of a problem that occurred when he
filed for office. He said he filed by paper in Anchorage, then,
in response to the upcomng electronic filing requirenment, went
to the commssion's office in Juneau to file electronically and
was told he had not previously filed. He said he had the
paperwork in his hands at that tinme to prove that was not true.

8:26: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA rel ated that because she has a conputer-
savvy bookkeeper, she does not anticipate having a problem
filing electronically; therefore, she said she currently does
not have a conflict of interest with HB 311. She reiterated
that it was the legislature that directed APOCC, through statute,
to create the electronic filing system She said it is now up
to the legislature to figure out how to go forward from here.

8:27:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he supports HB 311 and agrees wth
the idea of allowing time to get the bugs worked out of the
system He offered his understanding that several |egislators
do not have conputer access in their session residences, which
makes it difficult to get caught up on filing information.

CHAIR LYNN clarified that although |egislators have access to
conputers in their offices, they are not allowed to use state-
suppl i ed conmputers to conduct canpai gn busi ness.

8:28:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he agrees with the direction of the
proposed | egislation, but is looking for clarification on points
withinit.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA, in response to Representative Seaton,

confirmed that currently and under HB 311, APCC is and woul d be
required to accept paper filing and scan it into the system

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 7, 2012



8:30: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, in response to Representative Seaton,
said HB 311 was crafted with the intent to not interfere with
APCC poli ci es, pr ocedur es, and determnations related to
information submtted; the proposed bill would change only the
nmet hodol ogy of reporting. He said it would be a policy call for
the commttee whether to provide further statutory guidance on
t he accept ance of witten reports, spr eadsheet s, or
el ectronically submtted data.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA, in response to Representative Seaton,
offered her understanding that [matters pertaining to the
posting date of reports] are within the regulatory authority of
APCC, however, she deferred to APOC for confirmation

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he absolutely believes that "that is
the sort of thing that is best managed through regulatory
activity."

8:32: 24 AM

CHAIR LYNN conpared the timng of sending in a report
el ectronically versus through the mail

8:33: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = HAVWKER, in response to a question from
Representative Seaton, said |anguage [on page 1, |line 13,
through page 2, l|ine 1] wuld require in statute that the
spreadsheets or data files submtted to APOC conform to the
standard of the comm ssion. He added that it is not intended

that APOC woul d require any spreadsheets or data files that are
not readily available to the public.

8:37:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he supports and appreciates the
proposed |egislation, because he fills out his reports hinself
and submts them on paper. He directed attention to page 2,
line 25, regarding retroactivity. He noted that under HB 311,
Sections 1 and 2 would be retroactive, and he questioned whet her
Section 3 - the transition section - on page 2, lines 15-22
should also be retroactive. He said Section 3 would protect
peopl e who may have been filing in good faith under the current
system from being subject to a civil penalty.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 7, 2012



8:39: 08 AM

REPRESENTATIVE HAWKER said the retroactivity dates were
structured by Legislative Legal and Research Services, but said
he sees no reason not to accept an anmendnent to nake Section 3
retroactive.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG nentioned an unl abel ed anmendnment, and
asked whether it would inpact the current fiscal note from APCC.

8:41:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER tol d Representative G uenberg that the day
before, he received a fiscal note from APOC requesting one
additional enployee for an annual estimted cost of $62,800.
Based on his prior experience as co-chair of the House Finance
Commttee in charge of the operating budget, he said he is
having difficulty accepting the need for increased cost for
pur poses of HB 311. He said he is cognizant that there is a
cyclical increase in the need for extra staff during election
years. He recomrended that HB 311 be forwarded w thout a fiscal
note, because he said he believes it would be nore appropriate
for APOC to discuss its aggregate needs for this election cycle
and the com ng fiscal budget before the House and Senate Finance
Conmi tt ees.

8:44: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he supports HB 311. He stated, "I
believe you said ... that this could becone a bar inpedinent to
people ... in the state of Al aska who nay not have conputers,
and this my be an inpedinent to run for office.” He opi ned
that that is a significant elenent, and ventured that it could
beconme a | egal question. He indicated that the issue increases
hi s support of the proposed |egislation.

8:45: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  KERTTULA said she thinks APOCC s current
regul ati ons would cover a situation in which soneone was wi thout
a conputer. She said the problem is nore about bandw dth and
whet her people are able to upload the new program

8:45: 37 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 7, 2012



REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said her bookkeeper keeps abreast of
technology, but if she had to [figure out the new filing
requi renents] herself, it would be hard. She comrented on the
difficulty of neeting reporting requirenments during session.
She said she supports the bill.

8:46: 44 AM

CHAIR LYNN stated that there would be no conflict of interest by
anyone on the commttee when the tine cane to nove the bill out
of conmittee.

8:46: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = HAVWKER, in response to a question from
Representative G uenberg, said he would advise the conmttee to
formal |y adopt the zero fiscal note in the conmttee packet.

8:47:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said she would like to hear from APCC
whether the reason it would need to hire a person is because
they rel eased a person | ast year.

8:48: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN remarked that there are sone potenti al
post office closures across the state, so candidates across the
state may not have a way to mamil in their reports, and if they
do not have access to conputers, they may have to travel down
river to a bigger comunity to conplete submttal of their
reports.

8:49: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she knows that APOC has been
willing to work with candidates in simlar circunstances in the
past. She said the bill is not just about incunbents, but also
af fects candi dat es. She said she has not had a chance to ask
APOC for the reason behind its fiscal note, and she indicated
that she would like the bill to nobve on the House Finance

Comm ttee, where she would work to "be sure that we figure that
out."

REPRESENTATIVE HAWKER clarified for the record that hi s

recommendation is that the commttee pass the bill with the zero
fiscal note, and that APOC bring forward its needs and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 7, 2012



considerations for the comng fiscal year in its regular budget
request for 2013.

8:51: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the APOC fiscal note analysis
read, "This bill may require revision of newy enacted
regul ations.” He asked for clarification. He then asked if the
bill would affect nunicipal candidates, as well as state

candi dat es.

8:52:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that the regulatory activity
undertaken by all agencies is an ongoing process, and "the
capability to manage that regulatory activity is inherent in
their baseline budgets." He noted that the request in the
fiscal note analysis was for a position that would "engage in
the activities required by this bill; nanely scanning, manual
data input, and direct custoner service." Regar di ng nuni ci pa

candi dates, he said current statute excludes candidates from the
of fice of borough, mayor, and nunicipal, assenbly councils from
el ectronic reporting. He said the rewiting of that statute, as
reflected in Section 1 of HB 311 "grandfathers, for any
candidate, the ability to file on paper or a spreadsheet,

enconpasses those elections, and nmakes ... no change in how
those elections and those candidates are admnistered ... for
the disclosure requirenents currently.” He added, "It gives

state office candidates essentially the same choices that |oca
candi dat es have under current statutes."”

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER enphasized that he does not see the
proposed | egislation as a retrograde notion; the manner in which
people have filed in the past is the manner in which they wll
nost likely file for the upconm ng deadline. He opined that from
the standpoint of affecting the operations of the agency, HB 311
is a benign proposal.

8: 55: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he had just received a note from
Mark Higgins, staff to the House Rules Standing Conmttee, that
expl ai ns that because Section 4 of the bill lists Sections 1 and
2 - "triggering sections" - it is probably not necessary to
i ncl ude Section 3. For that reason, he said he would not offer
an anendnent to include Section 3.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 7, 2012



8:56:24 AM

PAUL DAUPHI NAI'S, Executive Director, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), prefaced his remarks by stating that the
commi ssi on understands and respects the legislature's need and
ability to make changes [to statutes] as it sees fit. He said
the commssion is charged with enforcing and admnistering
statutes to the best of its ability. He stated that HB 311 will
make access to public docunments nore difficult and wll nake
APQCC an inefficient organization.

MR. DAUPHINAIS said when he began his role as executive
director, on February 22, 2011, the nessage he received from
| egislators was that getting the [reporting] system working was
the priority, and he said APOC spent the |ast year naking that

happen. He said the public is dissatisfied with the current
system of reporting, because the current nethod of scanning does
not allow the public to conpare reports side by side. He said

APCC currently uses FoxPro database, which is an old, unstable
dat abase. The inpetus behind the electronic systemis to have a
system where the data is readily available and where there is
greater security.

9:00: 13 AM

MR. DAUPHI NAIS said as currently witten, conponents of HB 311
woul d be extended to municipal filers. He said a three-year
average shows there are 145 nunicipality candi dates that have to
file multiple reports annually. He indicated there are a great

nunber of nunicipalities that wll change between filing
electronically and not filing electronically. Under HB 311,
muni ci palities under 15,000 will be allowed to file by paper.

He said statistical data from national canpaign oversight
organi zations has shown that when electronic filing is nmade
optional, only 15 percent of filers use that system He noted
that that is just statistical data fromthe state of Al aska. He
said reports are anended, and when reports are filed on paper,
t hose anendnents all have to be done nmanually, which takes
between 10 mnutes to 5-6 hours. He offered further details

M . Dauphinais said that between July 1 and Decenber 31 of 2011,
APQCC spent over 1,100 hours on data input al one.

MR. DAUPHI NAI S tal ked about the tinme that APOC spends assisting
the public, dealing wth conplaints, and keeping up wth
statutory requirenments. He said APOC wants to conplete nore
audits, but was only able to spend 330 hours conducting audits
in the last six nonths. He indicated that under HB 311, the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 7, 2012



nunber of those filing by paper nmay increase, which would add to
the workload of the commission and make it inefficient. He
offered his understanding that APOC has to have reports in its
possession by the filing deadline, but he said he would like to

check statute to be certain. M. Dauphinais relayed that
reports sent electronically sonetines have to be transcribed,
and he said he cannot guarantee no m stakes will be made in the
process.

9:05: 32 AM

CHAIR LYNN pointed out that the Internal Revenue Service (IRS)
accepts tax return fornms that have been post marked by the
deadl i ne.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS reiterated that he needs to |ook up statute
regardi ng the deadline for reports.

9:06: 21 AM

MR. DAUPHINAIS offered his wunderstanding that the proposed
| egislation would not allow filing via [the State of Al aska's on
line system called,] "nyAl aska." He directed attention to
| anguage on page 1, line 11, which states that the conm ssion
shall accept electronically submtted information that s
"entered onto a version of the form accessed on the Internet
website of the conmmssion”, and he said nyAlaska is not the
Internet web site of the comm ssion. He opined that if APOCC has
to create a security systemsimlar to nyAl aska, based on APCC s
website, it would be tinme consum ng, expensive, and inefficient.
In response to Chair Lynn, he offered further details.

9:11:17 AM

MR. DAUPHI NAI'S, in response to Representative Keller, said there
are many states, including Massachusetts, t hat require
electronic filing, and many others that will require electronic

filing in the next two to three years, and he offered to procure
alist for the commttee.

CHAIR LYNN comented that the geography of Alaska is different
fromthat of any other state.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expl ained that he was wondering if Al aska
is on the | eading edge of this issue.

9:13: 21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 7, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON returned attention to M. Dauphinais’
previously stated concern regarding the |anguage on page 1, |ine
11. He asked himif it would help to change the |anguage from
"the Internet website of the commssion” to "the Internet as
desi gnated by the conmm ssion".

MR. DAUPHI NAI S answer ed yes.
9:14: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recalled M. Dauphinais had said that
currently nunicipal candidates in conmmunities wth popul ations
over 15,000 are required to file welectronically, and the
proposed legislation wuld be a step backward for those
conmuni ties.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS confirmed that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would like to know if that is
t he sponsor's intent.

9:15:49 AM

MR. DAUPHI NAIS shared that he was confused by the proposed
regulation after having been given the directive by the
| egislature last year to go forward with an electronic filing
system He said he understands that "APOC is the organization
that everybody |oves to hate,” but said APOCC wants to "do things
right and conformto the |aw "

CHAIR LYNN interjected that he thinks those who nake reports to
APCC want to do things right.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS said many of the conplaints APOC addresses stem
from ignorance, and the electronic filing that APOCC envisioned
would allow the comrission to devote nore time to training,
outreach, and auditing.

9:17:20 AM

MR. DAUPHI NAIS directed attention to APOCC s fiscal note, dated
2/3/12 [included in the commttee packet]. He said the increase
in reports that APOC would have to do if HB 311 passes was the
inpetus for the fiscal note. He noted that not reflected in the
fiscal note is the cost to replace the FoxPro database, which he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 7, 2012



reiterated works at present but is not going to be supported
much | onger.

9:18:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, regarding the filing deadline for
financial disclosures, <cited 2AAC 50.785(c), which read as
fol |l ows:

(c) If a filer files a disclosure statenent by hand
delivery or facsimle, the date of filing is the date
on which an office of the conmi ssion receives the

statenment. If the filer files a disclosure statenent
by mail, the date of filing is the date of the
postmark. If a disclosure statement filed by mail has
a postmark on which the date is mssing or illegible,

the date of the postmark is rebuttably presuned to be
10 calendar days before the date on which the
di sclosure statenment is received. (Eff. 7/ 20/ 95,
Regi ster 135)

MR. DAUPHI NAI S said he would like to review that before giving a
definitive answer.

9:19: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he disagrees with M. Dauphinais'
previous statenent that HB 311 nay prohibit use of nyAl aska. He
returned attention to the |anguage on page 1, lines 11-12 [text
provi ded previously], and he enphasized the word "accessed". He
indicated that the top line of APOC s web site provides a link
to access electronic filing of APOCC docunents.

9:21:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA posited that "we" have a common goal
She said the agency is doing a good job trying to get ahead, but
wi thout delaying the inpending APOC filing requirenment, there
will be "a real pile-up." She opined that using the phrase "the
form accessed” would give APCC great |atitude. She concl uded,
"It was never our intent to do away with the work that they've
done. "

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER concurr ed. He enphasized that he wants
all candidates to know that the single point of information for
conpliance filing is APOC s web site. He said the mssion is to
make the filing system work for both the candidates and the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 7, 2012



publi c. He stated that the bill would codify current practice

and he stated his belief that the bill would not be a retrograde
not i on. He clarified that there has been a nandate for
el ectronic filing, and those who file on paper have been able to
do so because of an exception allowed in statute. He said he

encourages APOC to continue to inplenment electronic systens that
are sufficiently effective, attractive, and user-friendly, so
that an increasing nunber of candidates choose to file
el ectronically.

9: 25: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN offered his wunderstanding that the
proposed | egislation does allow the conm ssion to use nyAl aska
because of the |anguage beginning on page 1, line 13, through
page 2, line 1, which read as foll ows:

(2) submtted to the commssion in the
form of an electronic spreadsheet or data file that
contains field nanes and data types that conformto a
standard defined by the conmm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN indicated that if APOC wants people to
use nyAl aska, then the comm ssion would just need to define that
as a standard.

9:26:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that under HB
311, nmunicipalities with popul ati ons above 15,000 could file by
paper. He asked whether that is a change or whether because of
"wai ver ability" it is not considered a change.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that current statute requires
candi dat es for state and muni ci pal of fices to file
electronically, and under HB 311, state office candidates and
candidates in municipalities larger than 15,000 would be able to
file a paper report wthout having to avail thenselves of the
other statutory provisions that allow APOC to nmake exceptions to
[the requirenent to] report electronically. He stated, "W are
revisiting the standard and, through this legislation, saying
that electronic filing is the desired outconme, but we respect
the relative skills, abilities, and circunstances of potential
candi dates who may not be able to avail thenselves of electronic
filing or may not choose to."

9:29: 02 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 7, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is in favor of bill, but expressed
concern that it will result in a lot nore paper filing.

9:30: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA of fered her under st andi ng t hat
"everyone" was under the old system which allowed electronic
and paper filing, and APOC cane up wth a new system which is
what HB 311 woul d address. She said the one point on which she
is not clear is whether or not the nunicipalities are "in the
same place" that legislators are in, but said if they are, she
guestions that anybody woul d "nove backward. ™"

9:31:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER concurr ed. He said, "I think the
mandatory el ectronic filing has disenfranchised a certain cohort
of the state's population that | think we have to be very
careful to protect.” He enphasized the inportance of not

di scouragi ng anyone in Alaska fromrunning for public office.
9: 33: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the wording of a
sentence on page 2, line 9, which read as foll ows:

Each summary nust [SHALL] wuse uniform categories of
reporting.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG poi nted out that under HB 311, the word

"shall" would be changed to "nust". He said "must" is
mandat ory, whereas "shall" is directory. He said he thinks
"shal " should be changed to "nust" on page 1, |line 6.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER confirnmed that the intent of the sponsor
was that the conmm ssion nust accept "any information required
under this chapter”.

9:36: 18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA, in response to Representative Keller,
said the directive from the legislature to APOC to create an
electronic filing systemis in statute. She reiterated that the
goal has not changed, but the timng is problematic.

9:38:45 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 7, 2012



MR. DAUPHINAIS, in response to Representative P. WIlson, said
the rule regarding nunicipalities with a popul ati on over 15,000
was in place before he took his current position with APOCC a
year ago.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked if APOCC has received nuch
feedback in the past from nunicipalities wth popul ati ons over
15,000 that the electronic filing process is too difficult.

MR. DAUPHI NAI' S answered that he is not aware of any, but said he
woul d canvas staff to find out if they have received any such
comments in the past.

9:41: 42 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:42: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, which read
as follows:

Page 2, line 7, following "wthin"
Del ete "10"
| nsert "two wor ki ng"

There bei ng no objection, Amendrment 1 was adopt ed.

9:42:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 2,
to change "shall" to "must", on page 1, line 6. He expl ai ned
that he would like to leave it up to Legislative Legal and

Research Services to determine if the change is necessary.

CHAI R LYNN suggested that the next commttee of referral could
ask Legislative Legal and Research Services if the change is
necessary and act accordingly.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted that if HB 311 noves out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee without a fiscal note,
then the next conmttee of referral would be the House Rules
Standing Commttee; however, if a fiscal note is attached, the
bill would have to be heard by the House Finance Conmittee. He
stated that if the conmttee researches the question brought by

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 7, 2012



Representative Gruenberg and deternmines that the |anguage needs
to be changed, then he would ensure that the issue is heard by
t he House Rul es Standing Comm ttee.

9:44: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdrew his notion to adopt Conceptua
Amendnent 2.

9:44:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA, in response to Representati ve
Gruenberg, said both municipalities and the |legislature were "in
the sane boat,"” and then nunicipalities with less than 15, 000
wer e exenpt ed. She said she would continue to work to inprove
the bill.

9:46: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to attach the zero fiscal note
prepared by the House State Affairs Standing Conmittee, with the
understanding that APOCC would use the normal budgetary process
to expl ain any budgetary needs.

9:47: 05 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON objected to nmke a coment. She
cautioned the commttee to carefully consider the effects of the
bill on nunicipalities. She said she thinks it nmakes sense to

allow nunicipalities with populations under 15,000 to file by
paper . She talked about the difficulty of changing gears m d-
el ection cycle.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON renoved her objection. There being no
further objection, the notion to attach the zero fiscal note
prepared by the House State Affairs Standing Committee was
accept ed.

9:49: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON conmented on the rapid nature of the bil

hearing and the possible effect of allow ng everyone to choose
bet ween paper and electronic filing. He stated, "I think that
this is a drastic change in direction from where we have been
going in trying to make our system of reporting quick and
available to the public.” He recommended consi deration be given

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 7, 2012



to change the bill so that there still is a presunption of
el ectronic filing with a possible variance for paper filing.

9:52:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER posited that the common goal is to have a
user-friendly nethod of clear reporting.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 311, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recommendations and the attached zero
fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 311(STA) was
reported out of conmttee.

9:54: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said she thinks there is a fear of the
process, but it is not that difficult. She offered exanples.

HB 190- PFD ALLOMABLE ABSENCE

9:55:23 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the |ast order of business was SPONSOR
SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 190, "An Act relating to allowable
absences from the state for purposes of eligibility for
per manent fund dividends; and providing for an effective date.”

9: 55: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for SSHB 190, Version 27-LS0564\R, Kirsch,
2/3/12, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version R
was before the conmttee.

9:56: 25 AM

M CHAEL PASCALL, Staff, Representative Eric Feige, Alaska State
Legi slature, on behalf of Representative Feige, sponsor, noted
that the House State Affairs Standing Coomittee had heard HB 190
| ast year. He remnded the conmttee that approximately 13
years ago, statute was put into place such that anyone on an
all owabl e absence from the state becane ineligible for a
permanent fund dividend (PFD) after 10 years, with the exception
of nmenbers of Congress, congressional staff, and their famlies.
He said nunerous objections have been raised, there have been
guestions about constitutionality, and there have been court
cases. He said the sponsor, in working on HB 190, decided to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 7, 2012



propose extending the all owabl e absence tinme from 10 years to 20
years, during which tine perhaps a better solution could be
f ound. He indicated that Version R would create a tighter
standard by putting some regulations into statute. He said he
woul d offer a presentation at the next hearing of the proposed
bill that would explain SSHB 190 in nore detail.

CHAI R LYNN recogni zed that Representative Eric Feige, sponsor of
HB 190, had arrived.

9:59: 24 AM
CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.
[ HB 190 was hel d over.]

10: 01: 22 AM

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:01
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 7, 2012



